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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the members of
Valecha Kachchh Toll Roads Limited (‘the Company’),

Report on the Audited Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Valecha Kachchh Toll Roads
Limited (“the Company”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022,
Statement of Profit and Loss and statement of Cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information reguired by the
Companies Act, 2013, as amended (‘the Act’} in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, (“Ind AS"”) and cther accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022 and its loss {including
other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

a) The net-worth of the Company is completely ercded and it continues to incur losses
and continues to prepare its Financial Statemenis on going concern basis even though
it has accumulated losses of Rs. (7,49,49,43,006/-) (Previous vyear:
Rs (6,08,57,55,335/-)) and a Negative net worth of Rs. (6,80,99,43,006/-) {Previous
year: Negative net worth of Rs. (5,40,07,55,335/-)).During the year ended March 31,
2022, the Company incurred a net loss of (Rs. 1,40,91,87,671/-) (Previous year: net
loss of (Rs. 1,24,02,25,326/-}). As stated in Note 36, these events or conditions,
indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Further it had continued defaulted
in repayment of its financial obtigation including interest and the construction is
going at very slow pace for balance, which has resulted into increase in cost of
project mainly due to interest during construction period. However, as advised, the
project had been halted due to non-availability of land and environment issues and
on 13.05.2015 the Company has received PCOD (provisional commercial operation
date) for section 1 for which revenue is being generated. PCOD for Section 2 is likely
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to be completed by March, 2023. The company has also put an total claim of Rs.
1862.02 on GSRDC till 31st March, 2022 and is hopeful for getting the same
consequently repay/settle all its dues.

However, in view of the uncertainty involved over receipt of the claim amount and
consequent repayment of all its dues, we are unable to comment upen the
recoverability of the same including non -impairment of intangible asset and
intangible assets under development.

b} We understand that the Lenders of the Company have appointed a forensic auditor to
verify the matters with regard to the Company. However, it was explained that the
scope of audit and report including draft report has not been shared with the
Company and accerdingly we are unable to comment on same including any
adjustments arising out of the findings of the same,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143{10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code
of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under
the provisicns of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whote, and informing our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not
applicable to the Company as it is an unlisted company.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company's board of directers is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s
Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report but does
not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connecticn with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course
of our audit or otherwise appears te be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing te report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the financial
statements

The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuwring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
refated to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
errar, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
High level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
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arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgety, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3){i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls systemn
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based cn the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. We conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, accordingly we draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements (Refer Note 36 and 37 of
Financial Statement) and our report is not medified in respect of this matter. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those ¢harged with governance with a statement that we have compiied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Emphasis of Matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note No. 35 says that the liability
for employees’ benefit was not worked out as required under IND AS -19 “Employee
Benefit”. The consequential impact on the financial statements, if any, as a result of
the same is presently not ascertainable.

without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note No.37 of financial statement
regarding assessment of going concern of parent company i.e. Valecha Engineering
Limited, where company has obtained unsecured loan of Rs. 58.45 crores and paid net
advances of Rs. 42.46 crores towards EPC contract to its parent company resulting into
net liability Rs. 15.99 crores.

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note No.25 of financial statement
regarding non-reconciliation / non-confirmation of balances of certain debtors,
creditors, Loans and Advances, impact whereof presently cannot be commented.

We further report that the loss for the year and balance in the statement of profit and
loss are without considering matter described in the first paragraph of Emphasis of
Matter, the effects of which could not be determined.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure “A”, a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
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As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

i.  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

ii. In cur opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company sc far as it appears from our examination of those books;

iii.  The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, and the cash flow statement dealt
with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

iv. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

v. 0On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March31,
2022 taken on record by the board of directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 {2) of the
Act;

vi,  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in "Annexure B", and

vii.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us;

a) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

b) The Cempany did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeabte losses; and

¢} There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

d)

1. The management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested {(either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any cther sources or kind of funds) by the Company to
or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities(“intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
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or entities identified in any manner whatscever by or on behalf of the company

(“"Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

2. The management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief no funds have been received by the Company from any person or entity,
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on bebalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

3. Based on our audit procedure that has been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us te believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any
material misstatement.

e) The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

For RAJRATAN KOTHAR! ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration No: 113704W

o

RAJRATAN KOTHARI
Proprietor

Membership No: 032428
UDIN: 22032428AYSSXL6077

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 03th September, 2022.
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Valecha Kachchh Toll Roads Limit (‘the Company')

i (a) Based on the records examined by us and information and explanations given to us
the Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

{b) Based on the records examined by us and information and explanations given to us
the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by
which all fixed assets are verified annually. In our opinion, this pericdicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets. in accordance with the policy, the Company has carried
out the physical verification of fixed assets during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined
by us and based on the examination of the relevant records provided to us, we
report that, the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and
building which are freeholds, are held in the name of the Company as at the
balance sheet date.

(d) Based on the records examined by us and information and explanation given to us
by the Company, the Company during the year has not revalued its Property Plant
and Equipment (inctuding rights of use assets) or intangible assets, hence, the
requirements of the said clause i(d) of paragraph 3 of the Grder is not applicable
to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanation and representation given to us by the
management, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the
Company for heolding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. According to the
information and explanation and representation given to us by the management,
no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions {Prohibition} Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder.

ii. Based on the records examined by us and information and explanations given to us the
Company has does not hold any inventory and accordingly the provisions ¢f clause
3(ii)(a) and 3(i){b) of the said order is not appticakle to the Company.

i, According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of
the Act. Therefore, paragraph 3(iii), 3(iii){a), 3(ili){b), 3¢ii}(c), 3{iii)(d), 3(iii)(e) and

fm’ﬁ‘iﬁ\\(””(” of the said Order are not applicable.

O e
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iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act, with
respect to the loans and investments made.

v. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public in accordance with the provisions of section 73 to
76 the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed there under. Accordingly, the provisions
of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

vi. The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under
section 148 (1) of the Act for any of the services rendered by the Company and
accordingly paragraph 3{vi) of the Order are not applicable.

vii.  Based on the records examined by us and according to the information and explanations
given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the
books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Income Tax,
Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax and other material statutory dues have not
been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate
authorities. As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of
Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise and Investor Education and
Protection Fund,

According to the infermation and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees 5State Insurance, Income tax,
Service tax, CESS and other material statutory dues were outstanding as at the
yearend for a period of mare than six months from the date they became payable.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
company examined by us, there are no dues of income-tax, sales- tax, service tax,
goods and service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise and value added tax which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

vili.  According to information and explanation given to us and representatien given by the
management, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that
were surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961,

“gamedhun’ \es) \/
W 1] Raad,
Nuluad (st

Mumtal-as0st
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ix. Based on the Information and explanation provided to us:

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has following default existed in the repayment of dues to the financial
institutions or banks or any government or any debenture holders during the year.

Particular | Principal Default Interest Period of Default
amount Rs. Qutstanding Rs. —
Canara 1.85.53,45,759 3,46,38.68,067 | Principal is payable since Jjune 2016
Bank and interest is payable since
14,97,25,000 27,40,82,480 February 2016.
Total A 2,00,50,70,759 3,73,79,50,547 ]
Indian 1,50,49,96,382 1,59,56,99.670 | Principal is payable since June 2016
Overseas and interest is payable since
Bank 10,66,36,367 462,289,380 February 2016,
Total B 161,16,32,749 1,64,19,29,050
| Total [A+B) 3,61,67,03,508 5,37,98,79,598 —

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared as wilful
defaulter by any banks, financial institution or government or any government
authority.

¢) In our opinion and information and explanation given Lo us and based on the
examination of records of the Company, the Company has not raised term loans from
any lender and hence reporting under clause ix{c) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable tc the Company.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company, we report that no funds raised on short term basis have been used for
long-term purposes.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

x. Based on the Information and explanation provided to us:

a) [n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company did not raised moneys by way of initial public offer / further public offer
{inctuding debt instruments) and has not taken any term loan during the year.
Accordingly, paragraph 3{(x)(i) of the order is not applicable.
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b) In our opinion and according to the infermation and explanations give to us and
based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made
any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x){ii} of the Crder
is not applicable.

xi.  Based on the Information and explanation provided to us:

a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by its
officers or employee has been noticed or reported during the year.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-
section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government.,

c) The company is a private limited company and hence it is not required to establish
whistle-blower mechanism and accordingly provisions of paragraph 3(xi){c) is not
applicable to the Company,

xii.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi ¢ompany. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

xiii.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination

of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance
with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable Accounting
Standards.

xiv.  In our opinion and based on our examination, Sec 138 of the Act is not applicable to the
company and accordingly provisions of paragraph 3(xiv){a} and 3{xiv)(b) is not applicable
to the Company.

xv.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions
with directors or persons cennected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable.
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xvi. Based on the Information and explanation provided to us:

a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-lA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934,

b) On the basis of examination of records and according to the information and
explanation given to us by the Company, the Company has nat conducted any Non-
Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities hence the reporting requirements
under clause xvi(b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

¢} In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India.

d) As represented by the management, the Group does not have more than one Core
Investment Company as part of the Group as per the definition of Group contained in
the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

xvii.  Based on the examination of records, the Company has not incurred any cash losses is
Rs. 12440 lakhs in the financial year and Rs.10751 in the immediately preceding financial
year.

xviii.  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly

this clause is not applicable.

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios disclosed in note no. 38 to the financial statement, ageing and expected
dates of realization of financial assets and payment cf financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supperting the assumptions, indicate that material uncertainty exists that may cast a
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as
and when they fall due.
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Based on the examination of records of the Company and informaticn and explanations
given to us, due to losses incurred, the conditions and requirements of section 135 of
the act is not applicable to the company hence, paragraph 3{xx){a) and 3(xx}(b) of the
Order is not applicable.

For RAJRATAN KOTHARI| ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration No: 113704w

W)Wf/

RAJRATAN KOTHARI
Proprietor

Membership No: 032428
UDIN: 22032428AYSSXL6077

Piace: Mumbai
Date: 03th September, 2022.
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Annexure “B” referred to in paragraph 2(vi) under the heading “Report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {(“the Act”)

To the Members of Valecha Kachchh Toll Reads Limited

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reperting of Valecha Kachchh
Toll Roads Limited (“the Company’) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of
the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reperting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence tc the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and compieteness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Ceontrols Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controtls,
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves perferming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of

the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating

effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
_obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
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the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for cur audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusian or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the
following material weaknesses have been identified as at March 31, 2022:

1. The policies, procedures and overall internal controls needs to be strengthened in
order to provide proper evidences regarding recoverabitity of receivables, valuation of
inventories, provision of payables / liabilities and statutory compliances. We are unable to
ascertain its impact, if any on the statements in respect of the above matters,

LT Road,
Mulund (Eagy),
Murmbal-dy gig4
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A ‘material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial
control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable paossibility that a material
misstatement of the company's annual or interim financial statements will net be prevented
or detected on a timely basis.

In cur opinion, except for the effects/possible effects of the material weaknesses described
above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at 31st March, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For RAJRATAN KOTHAR! ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration No: 113704V

)

JRATAN KOTHARI
Proprietor

Membership No: 032428
UDIN: 22032428AYS55XL6077

Place: Mumbai
Dateg: 03th September, 2022,




Valecha Kachchh Toll Roads Limited
Balance Sheet as on 315t March 2622

{Rs. In Lakhs)
. As on 3st March As on 31st March,
Particulars Note No. 2022 2004
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Eguipment 3 14.25 1522
{o) Other Intangible assets 3 8.824.61 10,475.49
{¢) Intangible assets under development 3A 25,825.93 23,323.37
{d) Other non-current assets 4 0.50 0.50
Current assets
{a) Financial Assets
(1) Cash and cash equivalents 5 106.38 21.34
{uh Loans 6 4270.57 4,254.73
{b) Current Tax Assets (Nat) 7 1.42 1.42
{c) Other Current Assets 8 254.45 365.28
Total Assets 38,298.09 38,457.35

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
{a) Equity Share capital i) 5.850.00 8.850.00
{b) Other Equity 10 {¥4,849.43) (60,857.55)
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
{i} Borrowings - -
{b} Provisions 11 2.878.38 2.674.84
Current Liahilities
{a) Financiat Leabilities
{i} Botrowings 12 48,345 30 47,385.31
(ii) Trade payabies 13 197.34 380.37
(i) Cther Financial Liabililies 14 54,961 .27 41,999.02
{b) Other Current Liabitities i5 15 21 5.37

Total Equity and Liabkilities 39,288.08 3B,457.35

As per our report of even date
For Rajratan Kothasl Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.:113704wW

|
LA
RO
Rajratan M Kothari
Membership No.: 032428
Proprietor

Place : Mumbai
Date : 3rd September, 2022

For and on hehalf of the Board

"

Vijay Kumar H Modi Anil Sakharam Korpe
CFO&CS {Director}
DIN : 07543339

' Craechd, Wt Pade

Santosh Kurnar Patro
{Director}
DIN : 07571177




Valecha Kachchh Toll Roads Limited

Statement of Profit & Loss Account For The Year Ended 31st March 2022
{Rs. In Lakhs)

Note No Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31st March, 2022 | 34st March, 2021
I. | Revenue from Cperations 1,031.23 849.50
. | Other Income 043 0.11
lll. | Total Revenue (I + 11) 1,031.88 949.61
IV. | Expenses:
Employee benefils expense 15 20.24 22.18
Finance Costs 17 12,763.83 11,105.86
Deapreciation and Amortization Expenses 1,851.83 1,651.29
Impairment of Assets
Other Expenses 18 587.64 572.54
Total Expenses 15,123.54 13,351.87
IX. | Loss before tax {VII- VIIl) (14,091.88) (12,402.25)
X | Tax Expense:
{1) Current tax - -
{2) Deferred tax - -
Xi | Loss for the Perlod {14,091.88) {12,402.25)
XIl | Other Comprehensive Income
A ltems that will not be reclassified to Profit & Loss (net of tax)
B items that will be reclassified to Profit & Loss (net of tax}
C Transaction with cwners in their capacity as owners -
Total Comprehensive income for the periad {XI + XlIj (Comprlising
profit/loss and other comprehensive income for the period) {14,091.88) {12,402.25)
X | Earnings per equity share:
{1) Basic (20.57) (18.11)
(2) Ciluted {20.57) {18.11)
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For Rajratan Kothari Associates
Chartered Accountonts /ﬁ/ —_@,./
Firm Reglstration No.:113704W B

Vljay Kumar H Modi  Anil 5akharam Korpe
{CFO & C5) {Director)

DIN : 07543339

Rajratan M Kothari

Membership No.: 032428 , S@f\hﬁ) LA :Pﬂ\/bﬁu
Proprietor 3 Santosh Kumar Patro
Piace : Mumbai {Director)

DIN : 07571177

Date : 3rd September, 2022




Valecha Kachchh Toll Roads Limited
Cash Flow Statement For The Pericd Ended On 31st March 2022

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Year Ended
31st March, 2022

Year Ended
31st March, 2021

A Cash flow from Operating Activity

Loss Before Tax and Extracrdinary ltem {14,091.88) (12,402.25)
Add f {Deduct) Adjustment for :
Cepreciation ,651.83 1,651.2¢
Impairment of Assets
Interest Paid 12,763.83 11,105.86
Other Income {0.43} (0.11)
Operating Profit before working capital changes 323.36 354.79
Trade and other Receivable 94.99 {301.17)
Trade and other Payables 12,982.62 12,211.48
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activity 13,400.97 12,265.10
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activity
Other income 0.43 0.11
Purchasc Of Fixed Asscls - (2.94)
Intangible Assets under Development (2,502.55} {1,715.86}
Capitat work in progress
Purchase of Investments
Net Cash flow From Investing Activity (2,502.13) {1,718.68)
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Security Premium
Increase in Other Equity - -
Promoters Contribution - -
Interest Paid {12,763.83) {11,105.86)
Proceeds from short term borrowing 1,950.00 5£31.60
Repayment Of Loan - -
Net Cash From Financing Acitivities (10,813.83) {10,574.26)
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents B5.01 (27.84)
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 21.34 49.18
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 106.36 21.34

As per our report of even date

For Rajratan Kothari Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 113704W
f

@g&éﬁ/ |

Rajratan M Kothari
Membership No.: 032428
Proprietor
Place : Mumbai.

Date : 3rd September, 2022

L. 7. Road,
Mulund {Easi),
Humbal-400081

For and on behaif of the Board

A

Vijay Kumar H Modi
CFO&CS

< ahd, o PRIG,

A

anll Sakharam Korpe
{Director]
DIN : 07543339

Santosh Kumar Patro
{Directar)
DIN : 07571177
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Valecha Kachchh Tell Roads Limited

Statemnent of changes in equity

A. Equity Sharg Capitat {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars

Balance as on March 31, 2020 §,850.00
Changes in equily share capital durning the year -
Balance as on March 3%, 2021 6,850,00
Balance as on March 31, 2032 6,850.¢0

B. Gther Equity

Reserves and Surplus

Particulars Gther Comprehensive Income Retaingd Eamings Total (Rs. In Lakhs)
Ealance as at March 31, 2020 4,504.28 __(49,956.58) (48,455.30
Profit for Ihe period upto March 34,2021 (12,402.25) (12,402.25)
Corporate Guarantes Fees -

Balance as at March 31, 2021 1,501.28 [62,358.83) {60,857.55)
Prefit for the perdod upto March 31, 2022 (14,091.88) {14.091.88)
Corporate Guarantee Fees -

Balance as at March 3%, 2022 1,501.28 {76,450.71) {74,949.43)

As per our report of even date

For Rajratan Kothari Associates

Chartered Accountants <2
Firm Registratio 1 113704W
) “Samadhan*
’ L. T Road,

Rajratan M Kothari Mumbal-40g03y

Membership No.: 032428
Progrietor

Place : Mumbai.

Date : 3rd September, 2022

Mulung {East), |

For and on behalf of the Board

Ao op—

Vijay Kumar H Modi
CFO&CS

Anll 5akhzram Korpe
{Directar)
DIN : 07543339

)| Seappdh ip fasi

(Director)
DIN : 07571177
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Valecha Kachehh Toll Roads Limlted

-|Notes to Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2022 Rs, In Lakhs
Opening Bal Addition During  Capitatisatlon Caphtalisation Closing Bal
01-Apr-21 The Year Intangible Assets Tangible Assets 31-Mar.22
(Al & (B)
Note 3A: Intangible Assets under Development

{A) {B) {'C) {D) Total of (A to D)
1.380.33 17.853.02 2,050.06 - - 19,903.08
Interest During Construcilon 4,019.46 - - 4,019.45
Inlerest on Unsecured loan (GSRDC) 708.98 452,50 - 1,162.48
Other Preliminary Expenses 0.50 - - 0.50
Prabid Expenses 3.08 - - - 3.05
Appraizal Fee - Canara Bank 584 - G584
Audit Fee 1.68 - - 1.68

Air Conditionar - - - - -
Bank Charges 1.33 - - - 1.33
B G Commission 329 - - - 3.29
Conveyance Charges 0.08 - - - 0.08
Development Fees 159.27 - - - 159.27
General Expanses 0.76 - - - 0.78

Ganerator Set - - - - -
1IEC Code Exp. 0.02 - - - 0.02
LE. Reimbursemenl of Payment 104,77 - - 10477
Insurance Charges 0.56 - - - 0.56
[E Escalation Work 4.88 - - 4.88
Iriterest on IE Fees 323 - - - 3.23
Interest Paid on Statufory Liability 11 - - - 1.01
ISIN Activation Exp, 0.10 - - - 0.10
Postage & Courier Alg 0.04 - - 0.04
Printing & Stalionery 0.19 - - 0.19
Professional Fegs 188.13 - - - 188.13
Professional Fees - Traffic Swudy 1.12 - - - i12
ROC Charges 15 31 - - - 16.31

Salary Paid - - - - -

Staff Welfare Expenses - - - - -
Stamp Duly 4.43 - - - 4.43
Supervision Charges for ROB 157.52 - - - 157 B2
Tax Expense 1.39 - - - 1.29
Toll Expenses 8.05 - - - 8.05

Toll Systems - - - - -
Travelliing Expenses 5.05 - 5.05
Upfront Fea - Canara Bank 1710 - - - 17.10
Upfront Fee - IOB 17.00 - - - 17.00
Up Front Fees Additional Debt- Canara Bank 5.45 - - - 5.45
Intargst on Development Fees 32.86 - - - 32.86
{Sub Total a) 23,327.77 2,502,55 - - 25,830.32
Less : Indirect Income 4.40 - - - 4.40
___{Sub Total b} 4.40 - - - 4.40
Grand Total {a-b} 23,323.37 2,602.65 - 2582593

1. The company is concassionaire for ihe project of development of Bhuy Bhachau Read Ssclion in the state of Gujarat and is aulhorised for the right from project
authority to collect the toll fee from the users of saud road seclion during operation period after COD,
2. Furher, the company has received provisional certificate from Independent Engineer appginted by GSRDC to operate up {0 53.659 KM out of totai 77.68 KM (ie.
69% of tolal KM) on 13.05.2015. Accordingly, intangible assels under development has been capitalised in he year 2015 to (hal exlent and intangible assets has

been created, Balance project is sill under developmenl

Neote 38: Injangibla Assets under Developmant as on 31st March 2022

Particular Totat Less than 1 ¥r 1-2 Yrs 2-1Yrs ore than 3 Yrs

Concessionaire Right 25,825.93 2.502.55 1,715.86 910.75 20,696.76

Total 25,825.93 2,502.65 1,715.86 810.75 20,696.76
Intanglble Assats under Development as on 31st March 2021

Particular Total Less than 1 Yr 1.2 ¥rs 2-3¥rs lore than 3 Yrs

Concessionaire Righ! 23,323.37 1,715.86 910.75 2,205.90 18,490.67

Total 23,323.37 1,715.88 310.78 2,205.80 18,480.87

Hulund (Easth,
Mumbal-400061




[ hiota 4 | Gdher Non Current Assabs 345t March 2022 | 3dst Maroh 2024
[ Rs. In Lakns) {Fs. In Lakhs)
Deposiis
Sales Tax Depost 050 Q.60
Total 0.5 0.50
Mote §: | Cash and cash squivalents st March 2022 | Yigt March 2021
{ Rs. In Lakhs} { R, In Lakhs)
{1} Cash on Hand 541 3.8%
[Sub Total 1) 5.41 3.6%
il Balances with Banks
In Current Aacounty
Canara Bank Ade 2877201000019 0. 015
Canara Sank Escrow A 2830201000167 253 068
Genara Bark Todl Callacllon Ale -3305201003352 72,30 .38
Corporallen Bank Ade 510101005285582 25,87 1445
{Sub Tokal W} 100,84 17.89
Total 10626 21.534
Mate & | Leans - Currant 31st Marph 2052 | 21t March 2021
{ Rs. Ik Lakhs) I Rs. In Lakis)
Advaneas to related partigs:
Unzegured:
Aachinsry Agvance to Valgcha Engl Lirmited 535.34 E38.34
halarial Ad o Valeche Engl g Lemlied 246886 245400
Motdl; d 12 ¥alecha Engl Limited 1,238,685 1,238.25
Valecha Infrostruciures Lid Assols 2175 .75
Walecha Badwani Sendowa Toll Ways Lid 0.98 ~
Valecha LM Tell Prvalg Limited 1.78 1.79
Tatal A2T05T 4,254,753
Detalls af Short Term Loans & advances in the nature of Loan givan to Related Paries, Porsons
Asat As et
31.03.2022 3L03.2021
Type of Borrower Catstanding atieunt | % to the toral Loans | Outstanding amount | % to the fotal Leans
of Inan or advance In | and Advances [n the | of kean or advande In | and Advances in tha
the natuse of foan nature of foans the ralure of loan natwre of loans
ARrosmant does not sperify any terms or perlod of regeyment
Prometars [1: %
Dicactors - 0% - 0%
KMPs - 0% - A
Related Parties 4,276.57 100 425473 100%
Total 3.270.57 10 4,254.73 0

MNobe T:  Other Curranl Assets

Aist March 3072

31t Marah 2031

{ Rs. In Lakhs} i Rs. ln Lakis|
TOS Receivable 142 1,42
Tetal 1.42 1,42
Mota &1 Other Currend Assets 315l March 2022 | Jist March 2021
[ R=. In Lakhs) [ Rs. In Lakihs)
Imprest 120 445
Amount Wilhheid by GSREC 000 Z535.71
Advances 1> Staff - -
Advances 15 Supptler 20380 -
Prapald upirent fees - 5477
Prepald Insurance Expensas 50.25 50.35
Total 254.45 F55. 20
Note 9:  Share Capital 31s1 March 2022 | 31zt Maroh 2021
| RS, In Lakhs) | Rs. In Lakhs)
{1} Authorised Share Capltal
5,85,00 003 (Prev Year £,85,00 000) Eqully Shares of Rs 0 gach 685000 &850
{) Equity Sharas - Issued, Subsgribed snd Paid up
B,85,00,000 (Prav, Year §8500,000) Equiy Shares of Rz 40 2ath 655000 _6.860.00
Total 6,350.00 6,860.00
[} Recenclliation of Lhe sharas outstanding at the beginntng and tha at the ond of the reporting pericd
2021-22 Z0z0-21
Ho. of shares K. of shares
At the baginning of tha year 58,500,000 8,500,000
Add - lssued dufng tne yaer - -
Quisiandlng at tha and of tha year 8,500, 6E,500,000

Rights, Preferences and Resinglions -

per share, The company déglares and fays diwdend in [ndian rupees, In the event of liguidalien of the company, the halders of equily zharms)

The comgany has enly one £fass of equlty shares having par valug of Ry HK- par sham, Each hotder of equity shares ks antitled 10 gns wale

wlll b enttled & (etaive assels of the v, after of all pr The will ba n prop
1 the number oF equily shases held by the shacehoiders,
Sharas hald by HMo.of Shares % ot Shares Ho.of Shares % of Shares
- Its Holding Company (M Valecha Englnesting Limited) 32,635,000 15 29,835,000 5%
Detats of Sharenolders holding mere than 5% shares
2001422 2024-21
Mo, of shares % holding Mo, of shares % helding
Namg of Shareholdars
Valecha Engineenng Limsted 38,835,000 58% 39.835,00¢ SB8%
PBA Infraststure Limited 23 565 B £2% 28 865 000 42%
{1} Sharas held by pr as defined In the Companies Act, 2013 at the end of the year:
Promoter Mame As at IL03. 2022 Az at 31.03.2021 % change during
Mo of shares 124 of Halding | No of sharas % of Holding the year
walecha Bnginearing Limited 30,835,000 58% 38,815,000 B3 0.00%
Total 39,835,000 8% 39,835,000 5B L.00%

“Samadhan®
L. T. Road,
Mulund {East),




T151 Maroh 2022

F1st hiarch 2021

M Other Equity
[Re.InLakhs) | ({ Rs. In Lakhs)
SurplusfiDeficit) In stztament of Profil B Lass
Balance Brought Forward {52,358.83) (48,966 58]
SurptusfiDehicit} In stabament of Profit & Losa during the vear (14,091,538} {12,402.258)
Prevksion fef resurfacing axpenses ) :
IndAS impact for Bervlce concesslon agresmenl - .
{7F6.451) {62,359
Qthigr Cs k nceme (3 Fees) 1.50%.28 15026
Tetal [74,849.43) (60, B57.£5)
Hata 11: | Provisions - Nen Current 315k March 2027 |_i1st March 2021
| R%. In Lakhz) { R%. InLakhs}
FPravision for MMR 2.878.38 2,674.84
Total 2,878.34 2,674.84
Mote 120 Borrowilndgs - Querent 313t March 2022 | 31st March 2021
| Rs. In Lakhs}
Sacured Loans
Term Lonns
Canara Bank 20,060.71 20,309,084
neféan Overseas Bank 16,116.33 16, 118,33
The term lazn iz secured by
| JFirst mortgage and eharge of all T E properiies il any, ath present and future save and extep! project assets,
ii.JFlest paclpassy charge by way ol hypothecaton of all tha pany's . inciuding blo plant ang b y spares, leols
and accossoties, furniture, fieduras, velicles and all other movable assels of he prqeci save srd excapt progecl assels present and fdure,
lii.y Firsy eharge oo eompany’s cash flows and recelvables Inchuding revenues of whalever nature, present of lulure wharever ansing,
Principal, nterest & Intarast Rate :
o Princlpal Intorest Tatal Amound jo
Particular Prinaipal Outstanding Rs_ {4} Default Re Outstandin s, (AeB) Rate Intarest Parlad of Dafaul
18,5545.486 18,553 45| 34,8.35.68| 53,182 14| Base Rale+5:45% |Frinclpal |s papable
snes June 2016 and
Ganara 1,497.25 1.457.25 2.7a0.82 4,238.07 Intsrest s payable
Hank slnee Fabruary
F-al
Total A 20,050.74 2005071 37,379.54 ST 430,21
15.049.65 15,042,095 15,887.00 3100585 Base Rale+1.79% |Principal i3 payable
indian sinco June 2015 and
Gverseas intareat s payzble
v 1,055.35 1.066.36 462,29 1.525.65 since Fabruary
Benk
2016,
Total 8§ 18,116,323 16,116.33 16,415,25 32,635.62
Total 35, 167.04 38,167.04 &3, 798,80} B9,965.82
(A
Company hat net pald any principal armeunt duting lhe coment year, Furiher, Bank has rot revised b sthedula Hence, we
dder, same for current year,
Unsacurad
Loans and advances lram ralated parties
Part of lha Promoeters Contributlon in Projest from Valechn Englneering Limited, Holding Company. Infused a3 per the Rupss Lozn Agreamen) 584512 584512
enterad walh project lenders,
Repayatte after the papment of secured loans, at fece value on the basis of avellability of cash flow and carmes 0% ntares!,
Valecha Badwani Sendhwa Toll ways Lid - 052
Loan from GSRDC T.335.145 512330
FEREC has provided loan againa! claims of the Comgany 1 8.25% PA annually & will be repald crcs Lructlon Is lete and I of
claim 15 mada.
Total 49, 545.30 A7 38531
Note 13: | Trade payablos (Rofor fote 18.a1 Bist March 2023 | 31st March 2021
{ Rs. in Lakha) [ Rs. In Lakhs)
Payable 0 EPS Conlracior Holding Company o0 201.88
Suriry Credilars Cihars 07,34 148.48
Total §97.34 %0.37
Ageing of Trade Payable Mst March 2022 | 3isi Marzn 2021
Aul other than MSME { Mon- Disputad) { Ry, In Lakhs) [ R, in Lakhs)
<1 year .12 5225
1-2 Years 38 -
23 Years oot 1.26
>3 years 16280 120 98
Total 19734 188,48
Note 14: | Other financial Liabilities - Current 315t March 2022 | 3isidlarch 2021
{ Rs. In Laldvs) { Rs. In Lakhs)
Interast acorued and dus on borrawings
interesl payable lo GERDC 1,162.48 To8.98
Intzrest peyeble lo Bank 53,788.80 41.269.04
Total 54,9127 41,995.02

*Sarmadhap®

L. T. Road,
Mulund {East},
Mumbal-400081




v.ote 15: | Olher Currant Liabllities 315t March 2022 | 313t March 2021
' { A= In Lakhs) { Ra. In Lakhs)
Slalviory Dues 5.4 237
Total 1521 5.7
Naote 16: | Erm ¢ Banellts Expenses 31t Maroh 2022 [ st March 2024
{ Rs. In Lakhs) { R%. In Lakhs)
Sataries £ Wages 941 A1E7
Others .82 £.59
Totsl 20.24 2218
Neie 17 | Flnanca Costs Alst Margch 2022 | 315l March 2021
[ As. In Lakhs) [ Rs. tn Lakhs}
Interest Cost 12,761 29 11.1053.53
Other finarnee cost 254 2.33
Tolal 1276283 14,105.88
Note i l Other Expenses 218l March 2022 | 315t March 3021
{ Rs. In Lakhs) { Rs. In Lakhs)
Legal & Professionz] Fees 023 1.5¢
Porwer & Fugl 22 21
fenl & Hira Charges :A:1:3 B8.95
Ranl, Rales & Taxas 002 a43
Repalr & Malnlanance 127 68 16006
Bundry Qperatiansl Expenzes 46,08 189
Toll Oparabion & i Exy 16568 18836
Travelling & € . (0.78)
Payment o Audilers 2.80 239
FPravision for MMR Expenses 313.34 22563
Toll Rafrgshmant Expensas a.41 043
Teotal HRT.Ed 5T2.54
Neta 19: | Commitmants st March 2022 | Jdat Mareh 2021
[ Rs. In Lakns) { Rx. In Laknhs)
Estl | amaant of gont ing io be led on caphal account { Met of Capilal Advances) SE.07 270713
Mote 20: | Augitors Rerouperation (Ingluding taxes 315t March 2022 | 315t March 2021
' [ Bs. In Lakhs} { Rs, ln Lakhs)
Statulory Audil Fer 1.60 180
Quanerly Limied Review Audit Fes a3 038
Taed Al 0,40 0.40
GET 0,43 043
Total .80 2.80
Note 21: | Earning Per Shara 315t March 2022  35st March 2021
[ Rs. in Lokhs) [ Rs. In Lakhs}
Mel Prefit attnbulabie o equity sharcholders [15,091.88) {12,402.25)
Welghted avarage number of shares for Bese and Cilvled EPS (Mumbers) 68,500,000 2,500,000
Basls & Dliuled Eamirgs Per share {Equily share of Rs, 0/ gach} {20.57} {18.11)

*Samadhan®
L.T. Road,
Mulund (Ezst},

Mumbal-400041




: | Seqment Reporting

The Company 15 a speckal furpose vehicha which has a singly special purpose of dovalopmant of Bhuf Bhachau Road Soion in ke stade of Gulral on BOT basls; iheralore e
ordy sagmanl of company as per lnd AS 108,

ConstrucHon Work In Progress

The Pryect Milestonels) Consi G won Date as per Clause 10.3.5 of Ihe Concession Agreement wiih GSROC could nol e achreved for reasons atitibukable
o GSROC. Aceordingly the company kad made rep ion 19 GERDC feor of hme &nd the GSROC had allewed the inlenm extension of ima 1 Schedule Canstrucion
Completion Dalo uplo 3111212014 Howewver, sinca the sonstruction work ceutd nat he camp d bafars the lad date, the y has made rapr {on 1o GEROC for
extension of lima upto 351272015 and the company Is hopetul of geliing he eutansion of time, In view of lhe samea, the company Soes nel antlepate any demand from GERDC for
e - achi of Mitasl G ion C ion Dite, Since the project delay coused dalay in GOD /7 108 recovery the hankers have re-schadulad the rapaymant
biigatien and L iti soan of Rs.26.70 arores tewards infarest during eonstruction period As Suth there is no cost dverrun and escalatien on the EPC cosl. Further,
tha P has |ved |slanal Afl from lndapandent Englneer appolnled by GERDCL lo operate up to 63.660 KM fram 13.05.2015 The Company has slerled Toll

Coltagtion w.e.f 15.05.2015,
GEROC has conveyed thal e Extansion of Time sought by is under consideraton, 1n tha mean lima e project has gol dotayad beyond 31/1 2286, In which Ihe company has Lo

seught sxtension of ime suilatly 85 per fetter dated 25.12.2015, invlew of the same the GEROC has 1o modify 1ha H Rletion of work lingky and bo arviva a
raallafic projecl complnlon date.
Further, Ike pariy has vad | ifi irem lodependent Engineer appolnled by GSREC 1o operale up to 53,552 KM from 13,08, 2045, Accordingly, the Company

hag started I oaﬂecl Tall Co’lecuon wef 1506 2015, Howaver, during tha year 209817 no wark has boen carried oul, hence balance amoun! of intangicie assels under

davelepment s nol capilalisad.
Beance wark now slarted in meath of Januay' 18 and GSROC has tanclicned Re 74 Crores 10 cemplate the same snd infused Rs. 73,33 Crores a5 on 35-03-2022

: |In the opirdan of Boend of Clreslars, he Curent Assets, Loans and Advances have a value 9 realization in ihe erdipany course of business il leasl ggual 15 1ha amoont al which
ihey are slalad In the Balance Sheel Sublect 1o Lhe notes the provislen fer all Sabalies is adequate and nal in gacass of the amouni d y Thore ara
ne Lantingand liabilifies ether Lhan those staled in the rotes,

: |Balanges of certain Debtors, Creditars, Loans £ Advances are In the procass of i 3lkats dj I¥ aryy, will be aecountad for ¢ and whan reconsliod /
gh these are 0 tha usua course of business a2 and whep kansadtions are made mansgamen i ¢f 1ha oplnlon that fhece is no adverse

: fl leation In Ihese

Disclosures Under Tha Micre, Smal Micro and emall antarprises ae defined undor MEMED Act, 2006

Under the Micre, Emall and Medium Enterprisas Dovalopmant Acl, 2006 which came imto force Frorn Oolober 2, 3006, sertain disclosuras ara faquited o be rtade relatlng 1o Micra,
Small and Medlum enlerprises There have been no reporied cases of Gelays In payments Iv migre and smaill enterpises o of intarast payments dud 1 detays In such payments
duning the years ended March 31, 2022 and hMarch 3%, 2021, The above is based on Lhe i It babla wath ihe Comparry whith has bacn rafled upon by the avdiders

Conlkagant Lizbilkies
As Concession Agreement Anicle 14 4 1 Damage kabilily may anse due 10 non-complelion of Punch dis) with 90 days from dajed of

Centiflcale Dated: 13.05.2015), Lowar of 0.15% of tha Parformanca Sacusily and 0.2% of the eosts of comprating such ilems as asil d by the Indepeadsent Engi on per day
basls, amouniing to Rs. 300,45,600 {FY : 300,45,600), GSROC has conveyed that the Extension of Tims sought by is under eonsideration, n the mean lime the project has gol
dafayed bayond 3171272015, In which (he company bas 10 sought 2xtansien of ima sultably a8 per letter daled 2512 2015, In view of tha same The GEROC has 10 modify the

| Ifi Issuad. (P

Mk ! taticn of wark dingly and to armva a realkslic projeot complallon date,

*Samadhan®
L. T. Road,
Mulund (Fost),

Mumbak-400081




Note 28:

Enterprise where conirel exisi:
Enterprise having significant influence :
Enterprise over which holding company having significant

The nama of related parlies with the nature of relationship

The Cormpany has undertaken following transaclions wilh the related parlies in lerms of Accounting Standard - 18 "Refaled Party Disclosure™:

{Rs. In Lakhs}

NATURE QF TRANSACTIONS:

Holding Company

Enterprise having
significant influance

Enterprise ovar which
helding company having
slgnificant influence

April 2021 to
Mar 2022

Aprit 2020 to
Mar 2021

April 2021 to
Niar 2022

April 2020 to
Mar 2021

Aprll 2021 ta
Mar 2022

April 2020 to
Mar 2021

TRANSACTION DURING THE YEAR

Expenses dabited into Intangible Assets Under

EPC Cost

2,050.08

Advance given

Advance received back

Share Application Money Recd

Promolers Contribulion Recd.

Shon Term Borrowing

Shares Allotted

DUTSTANDING AT THE YEAR END

LIABILITIES

Sub-ordinate debl

5,845.12

Payable fo EPC Conlractar Holding Company

197.27

Short Term Borrowing

ASSETS

Mobilization Advance

538.34

538.34

naterial Advance

2,468.86

2,412.35

Magchinery Advance

1.238.85

Qlhar Advance

1.238.85




29

ball jal Ralics

Sr, Particulars Hote Az at 3151 As at 31st % Reasons of varlance [If
Na, reference | March, 2022 | March, 2021 | Variance |change Is marg than 25%]
1 | Current Ratio a [l 0.05| -14.28%
2 | Dabl ~ Equity Ratio b {072} (O.80)] -17.43%
3 | Debt Sarvice Coverage Ratio & {0.10) 012y -10.&7%
4 | Return on Equity (ROE) [+] 023 026 -11.03%
& | Inventery Turnover Ralla ] 0 o NA
5 | Trade recavalies lurnover tatg f - - NA
7 | Trade payables wrnover ratio 4q - - NA
& | Nel profit ratio h {13 68) (13.08) -4 52%
2 | Mat caplial tumaover ralio {in Gmas| 1 {800 {C.01} 7.38%
10 | Ratum on capital smployed {25) i Q.08 033 | -74.50%|reduction s due 10 Increase o
ather financia! Liabiies
11 | Retura oninvastment {ROL k 0.00% 0.00% NA

Currant ratio {in times) . Current Assats / Curtent abiltes

Dabl - Equity ratio - Tolal Debt divided by Equily

Osbt Sarvice Coverage Ratio {GSTR) (no of limss) @ Profit bafore interest, divided by Interest expensa,

ROE : iNet Profits afler laxes — Preference Dradend {if any) { Average Shareholders Equity

Inventory turnovs! ratio; Revanus from operations § Average Inventony

Trads tecelvable turnbver rat: Revenue from oparations | Average {Trade receivable and conlract assets)

Trads payables turnover ratio = Nat Credil Pureh 1A Trads Payabt

Met profit margn {in %) * profit aier tax ¢ Revenue from oparahon

et capllal Wimaver ratio = Met Sales / Worlang Capital

ROCE : Earming pefore lnleresl and kaxes { Caplial Employsad  (Capital Employed = Tangible Met Wiorih « Total Dabt + Caferred Tax Liebiliy}

=
—-J@-~occcvwd

k Return on invasiment (ROT) . Peofit afler tax | Toral Equity




[Fote 30

Fair value Measurement
Financigl Instruments by catogory

Partigulars F1-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Amortised
FYPL FYOCI Amortised Cost  |FWPL FYODI Cosl
Financisl Assets
Cash and Eank Balanca - . 106,38 | - - 21.24
Loans - . 427057 | - - 4,254.73
Total inanciat assets - . 4 3r8.82 | - - 4,275 07
Financ(ai liabilities - - - . - -
Bomewmg - - - - - 47,395,311
Tsrads payables - . 1973 | . - 380.37
Qthet fnancial liabillfes - - 54596127 | - - 41, 859,02
Talalr lal lizbilitins - - 55, 158.62 - - 5%, 764.68

The camying amounts of rade payabias, cash and cash equlvalant including sihsr ¢urieal bank baksncas and othar Nabilies including asditors, =22, are cansldered o ba the sama a3 thal falr
values, due to currant and snadl larmn aature af such balances,

Forfi 13 assats and llabilitios that ave | a1 fair vaig, the camylng amours arg goval 10 the fair valuss,
Mote 11 [ Capitad management

The Company manages s capltat s as io satequard 1ts 2BLIY 10 CominUe @5 3 QO LonCerm and 10 oplinuse ratuins (& our sharehalders, Tihe capiial siruciura of 1ha Company s based on

s Judg of ther approprlate balancs of key alements in order 10.maet its strategls and day-to-day needs. Wa consider the ameunt of capital n proportion 1o sk and manage the

capilal structere in light of changes In economic condlicns and the rigk ch lzs of e undeclylng assels, In coder to malntaln or adjust the caplial structurg, tha company may adjust the

armount of dividends paid lo shareholders, ratum caplat by sharsholders or issuwe new shares
Hote 32 |Financial risk management

Tha company aciiviiies axposes it to markat flsk, squlcily 715k and cradit risk,

This note exptalng Wi source of fish which the enlity 1 exposed 10 &no haw the entity 15 mangge 1he fsk,

Risk Exposure arising from Maasurement Management
Cath and cash GquUIvaonis, race|  AGRING analysls Gradi raungs Brvarslficaton of Bank deposits, cradil Hrlls and loters of
Cradii fisk racelvables, financial asseis
measuiad 3 amonised 05,
N Seraithvlly analysts Achively Managed
Markat rigk - Intarest rale Lang-lerm bormosings at varable
Ralas
Fafling cash fow forecasls Avallabilly of conmitted cradit ines and Domowing

Liquidity risk Bemewings and other Tabilities

markok rigk — interg st rate risk

Tine Bank lsans follows floaling rates with reseis dalined unger agroaments, Whils ntserst rae fuiluaions ¢arry a fisk on inancals, Lhe comgany eam (ol Inceme whizh |3 linked w W hes

providing 3 natural hodge le he fnterest rata sk

Bensivity

Profit of logs is sepslilve do highertower Interest income fem bormowlngs as & resull of changes in [nterast rates.

{Rs. In Lakhs)
Imgpact an profilloss aftar tax As at As at #Ag Bt
31ist March, 2022 | _3ist March, 2021 | 3ist March, 2020

Interest rates (ncieass) by ¥ baeis points (493.45% {473.95) {4 4y

Interest rates decrease by 1 basis points 493,45 473,95 .
Motz 33 [Financlal risk manzgament

Liquedity risk is the risk that tha Company vdll nol be abie 1o meel 13 i 13 a5 ey b dus The Company manages ds qukdly dsk by ensuring, a5 far as possibda, thal L wil
always have saffisent lguldity 10 meet i kabilites whon due,

The Company's fnance depanment s responmible for lguidity, funding as well 55 setiement managemend in addidon, processes and polcies relales Lo such nsks Sre Dverseen by semor

The managemart monliors thg Company's ngt llgutdity eosiion fRrougn forecasts on the basls of expecles cazh fiows, Tha company is aise 13king s10p3 Lo impreva llquidty golng fomward by
foouslag aa ngw iniliglives taken recenlly,

Tne table balow provides dataiis regarding tha contractual ities of slgnificant fi lal lizblfitles a5 2t March 34, 2022 and Mareh 34, 201

Tots than 12 Wore than 72|
Partlculars Carrying amount months maonths
A= al Mar M, 2022
Llapliithes
Borrowing 49,345.30 48,345.30 -
Trada paysbles 19734 201.89 4,551
Orher Nranciais iabidies 34,964 27 G4,081 27 -
Assats - - -
Cash and Bank Balance 106,38 0826 -
Loans 4,270,587 15.84 4,254.73

As at March 31, 2021

Lfabllities

Baowowing 472951 47305.31 -
Trade payablas 300,37 2752 18284
Oihar inangials laglltlas 41,880.02 41,999.02 -
Aasets - - -
Cash and Bank Balanse 21.34 21.34

Leans 4,254 73 33.44 421628




Mote 34

Dofgrrod Tax Assets:
The Company on tha basis of pradence has preh d not lo golze the det tax assety.

Hote 35

Employess' felirmont and other Benefits:
As per managsmenl no ﬂahll by For rebcomant banel‘il o5t (Gratuly Provision) anses (o the Company. a3 the amplioyess werk foe short tem basis on payioll, thersfore compilances with e Ind
AS = 59 an "Empl " is not i 1o tha Comparny,

Naote 36

The Company has incuired substantial lossas Irom is pparations Tor ihe last faw yoars which have arodad its net-worth subgtantially. This reises doubt aboul lls ablliity to cenlinua as golng

Howaver, Iho i5 ol the eplnion 1hat sinca GIROC nas given approval o siaA balance work In month of Janusy' 18 and has infused Rs. 74 Croras 1@ complale ihe same
Further mamagement i bn the precess of negollating on bank tem loans, Ineraase in ol collectkon Que 10 yemy AL revision and cOnsIstant growti in tha Iraffic, te company will te abla 1o
raturn prefltability ovor the next few pears, Hence the | s hava been prepa ing that the company wilY conbnus a5 golag concan Mo adjustmants ae, hance, madg In
tha financlal statamnani thai rrighl rgsult fronn the eutcome of tus uncerainty

Mot 37

Note on Golng Cancern of Parant Company:

During Iha year ended parch 31, 2021, the Parent Company's appeals againgt the winding up orders dated 01.03,2018 and 25.04.2018 passed by the Hontle High Coun ware dismissed by
five Hon'the High Court vide esdars dated 05.03.2021 and 09.03.2021. Pursuant to the dismissal of the said Appeais the Parent Company preferrad a Specal Leava Patiian bagring No, SLP
(Civil) Diary Me. 71031 of 2021 bafora the Hen'ble Sup. Courl, which Iy was aiso Gsmigsed by the Honble Supreme Coun vide Ordar daled 3004 2021 Howover, tha sald ordae
dated 20.04.2021 also granted likarly 1o the Company o present & farmal patibanfappication end present e scheme of setllement, One of the sharshoiders of he Parant Company, Vatecha
Irvastments Private Limited, ho'ding 17.77% of the (alal equity sharas, propounded & scheme of oy it iz fn p ot tha flberty granted by the Supreme Court of India.
They 380 Mled Company Summons for Cirgilons {L) No. 257113 of 2021 seatung apprograle orders 1o call for meetlngs al stakehﬁlders 1o vote on tie schems The Pargnt Company's Lead
Banker State Bank of indla maved an applicabon to transier the matler to National Company Law Trbunal {NCLT] 25 the Parent Camgany s @ consiruction and infrastruciure developmant
company and Is a golrg condom. Accordingly, the Hon'ble High Courl vide order dated 1% 12,21 passed an order directing Ihe bransfer of the Company Pelltion Ne 781/2016 and Company
Paltion Mo 1732018 1o NCLY,

Accordingly. inarsal statements of VKTRL has been prepared ang ne adusiments, f any have been mads.

Mote. 38

The Camy hias not revaluad any Propary, Men & Equipment nor any ntangiblo assels ]

abe 39 |Mo procesding has been initialad or penaing against e Company for holding any Benami property undar the Banaml Transactions {Prohlbition) Al 1868, a3 amented, and rulzs mads

i
Ihareunser

Mote 40 | The title dasds of all the immeovable proparies, (other than immovabie properies where Ihe Company is the lessea &nd the lease agreamants 2ng duly executed in lavow of tha Company)
discivsad i the financhal stalemants includad In propenty, plant and equipment and capital work-In pragress are hald In the nama of the Company a5 al Ihe balancs sheat dars,

Mote 41 JThe Campany fag intangivle assets under devalepment and a¢eacingly, aqeing complation schedute is provided In Mato Ho 34 il |

‘NNG 42 ‘The Company has granted beans Lo prormaters, directors, key managenal porsens and related panlas as defined unhder Companies Act, 2013.{ Refar dote. No &)

Hote 43 |The Company has not advanted oF leened or nvasted funds 10 any OINET PEFSONS) OF Snily(les), including foreian entites iarta s} with the ing Ihat the Intermediary shall:
(&) dirgcty or indiractly fend or invest sn othar persons or srililias identified in any manner whatsgever by of on behalf of the Uiimale Benafciartes) or (B) provide any guaranteg,
sacurity of the Tikd 1o oren behailf of the Ultimate Benaficiadas.

Wate 44 [Tha Company has not received any fund from any parson{s) oF antity(ies), including foreign entities {Funding Party} with the und o heth derd in writing or olhenwise) that the
Group shall {a} direclly or Indiractly lend or investin other persons or enbifes idontifed in any mannar whalsoaver by or on behatf of the Fund‘ng Pary (Ultimere Banetlelarias) or (B provide

uarantes security oe this ke on benall of ihe Ulimate Benoflclaries

Iﬁole 45 [The Company have borrowings from banks or finantial instilulions 25 per Motes Mo 12 and,

it was cblained.

there 5 reponting requirement required regarding wiil satlon of funds for specilic purposa for whfchl

Hote 46 | Tha Comparty have Borrowings frem banks or finandal lnstitutons anainst sacurity of qurrent assets, The quraterly returns or skaternents Alad by the Company with such banks are In agrcemerj
wilth the bonks of acoount of the Corm pérn

Hote 47 {Tine Company has nol been gaglared whiful dalaulies by any bank or financlal instuion or GovEmMEnt or any gowvarnment authoily, |

|m.~be 48 |The Company does nel have any transacions with sempanigs stiuck off,

|i\ror.e a9 [The Company ¢oas nal have any charges or salisfaction which 15 yel to b reglstarad with ROC beyond the stabaory paried. |

Ithe 50 |Tna Company has net raded o invested in Crypto curmency o ¥irtual Currency guling e finanglat year |

Nete 61 |The Company has not any sudh transaction which is nel recarded in the Baaks of aceouals that has besn surrendered or discdosed as income during ke year in the Lax assessments under the
Incoma Tax Ael 1951 such 8¢, search or survey or any othar relevant previsians of the Ingame Tax Act, 1681,

|Note 52 |"he Comparty has complied with the nUmber of fayers prasented under gausa (67) of sachon 2 of e Act read wih Ihe Companies (Rastichon on number of Layers} Rules, 2017 |

|thu 53 | The Ceinpany has not eniered inbo any scheine of srangement |

Nata 64 |Corporato Seclal Responsibility (TSR]

As ped iha section 135 of the Act, the Company (s nol requlrad to spend any ameunt tewards CER based on proflability of the Company, against the same no amount has boan spenl by tho
Company

[

Frevieus Year Comparallvas:
The previcus yoar NQures fave Been regrouped, ged, and reciassi 7 facessan

Az per our report of even date
For and on behalf of the Board

For Rajratan Kothari Associates

Chartered Accountants

FHrm Reglstration.{-'o: 113708W

wifay Kumar b Modi Ank Sakharar Karpe
{CFO & C3) {Pirestar)
[ o et
Rajratan ¢ Kolhari
Membership No.: 032428 .
Proprigtar S-C,f_‘f{‘tt] {('/‘-l . fﬂkr‘
Place : Mumbal. Santosh umar Patra
Diate : 3rd September, 2022 {Director)
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Valecha Kachchh Toll Roads Limited
Notes on Accounts Forming Part of the Balance Sheet as at 31%*March, 2022

1. BACKGROUND:
1.1 Corporate Information:

Valecha Kachchh Tofl Roads Limited {VKTRL) (s a Public Limited Company incorporated in India on
8th July 2011 with the registered office at Valecha chamber, 4th Floor, Andheri New Link Road,
Andheri (W), Mumbai -400 053. VKTRL is a subsidiary Company of Valecha Engineering Limited
which holds 58% of the equity share capital of the Company. The remaining 42% of the equity
capital is held by PBA Infrastructure Limited.

VKTRL has been set up to Design, Engineering, Construction, Development, Finance, Operation
and maintenance, construction of four/ two Laning Road of 8hyj - Bhachau Road Section, in the
state of Gujarat on BOT basis and it operates under a single business and geographical segment.
Further, the company has received provisional certificate from Independent Engineer appointed
by GSRDC to operate up 1o 53.65% KM out of total 77.68 KM (i.e. 69% of total KM) on 13.05.2015.
Accordingly, intangibie assets under development has been capitalised in the year 2015 and
intangible assets has been created. The amortisation of intangible assets carried out as per SLM
method according to holding company policy. The Company has started Toll Collection i.e.
16.05.2015. However, from the year 2016-17 no work has been carried out, hence halance
amount of intangible assets under deveiopment is not capitalised. Balance work now started in
month of January 2018 and GSROC has agreed to infused Rs. 74 Crores to compfete the same.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’'s Board of Directors on 3™
September,2022 Pursuant to the provisions of section 130 of the Act.

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
2.1 Basis of preparation

These Financial Statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act. These Financial
Statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the information and
disclosures mandated by Schedule Il of the Act, applicable Ind AS, other applicable
pronouncements and regulations,

These Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain
assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair vaiue,

These Financial Statements are presented in absoluie Indian Rupee, except where otherwise
indicated.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
infermation and disclosures mandated by Schedule Il to the Act, applicable Ing AS, other
applicable proncuncements and regulations.

2.2 Current versus non-current ciassification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:
= Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating
cycle

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting pericd, or

- . .
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liability for at least twelve months after the repaerting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

. It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
= itis duse to be settled within twelve months afier the reporting peried, or
. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least

twelve months after the reporting period
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the company are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currancy’). The
functional statements are presented In Indian Rupees (INR), which the company’s functional and
presentation currency.

2.4 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

= In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or iiability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant obhservable

inputs and minimizing the use of unohservable inputs.

All assets and habilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Statements
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowestlevel

/’m input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: ; W«Q}";
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Level 3 -Valuation technigues for which the lowest {evel input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unohservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Financial Statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation {based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
fiabilities which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting
policies. For this analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest
valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other
relevant documents.

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with
relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or lfability and the level
of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

2.5 Financlal instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and 2

financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, in the case of financial assets not recorded
at fair value through Staternent of Profit and Loss, net of directly attributable transaction cost to
the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular
way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to
purchase or sell the asset.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories;
= at amortised cost

= at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
= at fair value through other comprehensive income {FVTOCI)
Financial Assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
collecting contractual cash fiows, and
b} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

solely payments of principal and interest {(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. This

category is the most relevant 1o the Company. All the Loans and other receivables under financial

assets (except Investmants) are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
tc,fm ;@, \\‘ payments that are not quoted in an actlve market.

: lfismg the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by takin
%,5 ny discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral pant
EIR amortization is inciuded in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Lo




arising from impairment are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category
generally applies to loans and other receivables.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Statement of Profit and Loss/QOther Comprehensive
Income

All investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. The Company makes such
election on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and
is irrevocahle.

If the Company decides to classify an instrument as at FYTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the Other Comprehensive lncome. There is no
recycling of the amounts from Other Comprehensive Income {OCI) to the Statement of Profit and
Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity. Instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of the Company’s similar
financial assets) is primarily cerecognized (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet)
when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
'‘pass-through' arrangement; and either {a) the Company has transferred substantizlly all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or {b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to
recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that
case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward locking basis the expected credit losses associated with its
assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

The impairment methodology for each class of financial assets stated is as follows:

Loans recelvables measured at amortised cost: Loans receivables at amortised cost are generally
short term in nature considered to be low risk, and thus the impairment provision is determined
8s 12 months expected credit losses.

Loans given to employees: For loans given {0 employees outstanding as on the reporting dates,

the has determined reliably that assessing the probability of default at the initial recognmm
each and every loan or receivable would result in undue cost and effort. As permittgd. .
109, the credit provision will be determined based on whether credit risk is loy
reporting date, until the loan is derecognized. Using the impairment methodology the Co
has assessed that no loan loss allowance needs to be recorded in the books of accdﬂ




Expected credit loss {'ECL") impairment loss allowance {or reversal) recognized during the period
is recognized as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss (P&L). This amount is
reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various
financial instruments is described helow;

Financial assets measured as at amortized cost and other contractual revenue receivables - ECL s
presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the
balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off
criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Financial Liabilities
tnitial recognition and measurement

Flnancia! liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
Statement of Profit and Loss, loans and borrowings, trade payables or other payables.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value,

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, leans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts and other payables.

Subsequent measurement

Financlal liabilities at amortized cost; After initial measurement, such financia! liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortized ¢ost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisiticn and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance costs
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Leans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. However,
the Company has borrowings at floating rates. The impact of restatement of effective interest
rate, year on year due to reset of interest rate, is not material. Gains and losses are recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the
transaction cost amortization process.

Trade Payables

Trade pavyables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or fess {or in the normal operating cycie of the business if longer).
If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.,

Retentlon money payable B sy,

_' , This is the category most relevant to the Company. Retention moneys are measurggdat Fair Vais

nitially. Subseguently, they are measured at amortised cost using the EIR {Effectiifes t%@%ﬁ
. method. Gains and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when diaklliti
derecognized as well as through the EIR amartization process. ‘&@}/
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De-recagnition

A financial lability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is reptaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original
tizhility and the recognition of a new liability, The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the Statement of Prefit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabiiities are offset and the net amount is reporied in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legzl right to offset the recoghized amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneocusly.

2.6 Revenue Recognition:
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The Company

recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable

that future economic henefits will flow te the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for

the Company's activities, as described below.

A. Toll Collection: Toll Revenue is recognised in respect of toll collected at the Toll plaza of the
company at Kachchh — Bhuj, Gujrat on receipt basis.

B. Interest Accrued on Deposit with Bank: Income from Interest on deposits is recegnized on
time proportionate method.

C. Othars
Insurance and other claims are recoghized as revenue on certainty of receipt basis.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes less
accumulated denreciation and impairment loss, if any. Cost includes expenses that is directly
attributable to acquisition of the assets.
When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
Subseqguent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or {oss during the reporiing period in which they
are incurred.

Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each
reporting date and the cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for their intended use
before such date are shown as Capital Work in Progress.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line method over the
useful lives as specified in Part ‘C" of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, which is also
estimated as useful lives by the management.

Intangible assets and Amortization
Intangible assets are recognized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are
attributable to the assets will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the assets can be measured
reliably. Expenditure on an intangible item is expensed when incurred unless it forms pa
%, cost of intangible asset that meets the recognition criteria. intangible assets are stated
acquisition net of recoverable taxes [ess accumulated amortization and impairment los
s intangible assets comprising of software purchased and licensing cost are amortized
<72 line basis over the useful life of the software up to a maximum period of 10 years.
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2.8 Accounting of intangible assets under service concession arrangement

The Company has Toll Road Concession rights where it Builds, Operates and Transfers (BOT)
infrastructure used to provide public service for a specified period of time. These arrangements
may inciude Infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession arrangement for its
entlre useful life.

These arrangements are accounted for based on the nature of the consideration. The intangible
asset model is used to the extent that the Company receives a right {a license) to charge users of
the public service. The financial asset model is used when the Company has an uncenditional
contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor
for the construction services. When the unconditional right to receive cash covers only part of
the service, the twe models are combined to account separately for each component. If the
Company performs more than one service (i.e., construction or upgrade services and operation
services) under a single contract or arrangement, consideration received or receivable is
allocated by reference to the relative fair values of the services defivered, when the amounts are
separately identifiable.

The intangible assets is measured at the fair value of consideration transferred to acgquire asset,
which is the fair value of consideration received or receivable for the construction services
delivered.

Intangible assets model

Intangible assets arising out of service concession arrangements are accounted for as intangible
assets where the Company has a contractual right to charge users of service when the projects
are completed.

The intangible asseis is measured at the fair value of consideration transferred to acquire asset,
which is the fair value of consideration received or receivable for the construction services
delivered.

Amortization of concession intangible assets

The Intangible assets recognized are amortized over the concession period on proportionate
basis.

Maintenance obligations

Contractual obligaticns to maintain, replace or restore the Infrastructure (principally resurfacing
costs and major repairs and unscheduled maintenance which are required to0 maintain the
Infrastructure asset in operational condition except for any enhancement element) are
recognized and measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date for which next resurfacing would be required as per the
concession arragngement. The provision is discounted to its present value at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may no{ be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value i jg:se:“-\
For the purposes of assessing Impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for whi AR’«?‘@
are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash in
other assets or groups of assets {cash-generating units). Non-financial assets th
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each’

= i




2.9 Taxes

Current Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used 1o compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where
the Company operates and generates taxable income. Current income tax relating to items
recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognized cutside the Statement of Profit
and Loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:

a} has a legaliy enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
by intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the exlent thal it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at
each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxabie profits will allow the deferred tax asset to he recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the fax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realized or the liahility is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognized
outside the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in other comprehensive income or In equity).
Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to
the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

2.11 Contingent liabilities and contingent Assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond
the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent
liability alsc arises in extremely rare cases where there is a Jiability that cannot be recognised
because it cannot be measured reliably, The contingent Jability is not recognised in the books of
accounts but its existence Is disclosed in the Financial Statements. A Contingent asset is not
recognized in financial statements, however, the same are disclosed where an inflow of
economic benefit is probable.

2.12 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Cornpany has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligaticn and a reliable estimate can be made of the smount of the
obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed the
reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtuaily
certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net
of any reimbursement.

if the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

2.13 Employees’ Benefits:

Short term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be seitled
wholly within 12 months after the end of the peried in which the employees render the related
service are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period
and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as current empioyee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Past - employment obligations

A, Defined Contrlbution Plan:
The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds
as per local regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The cantributions are accounted for as defined contribution
plans and the contributions are recognized as employee benefit expense when they are
due. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

2.14 Segment Reporting:

. eiiiing
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The Board assesses the financial performance and position of the Company and makes strategic
decisions. It is identified as being the chief operating decision maker for the company.

2.15 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

+1

Estimates and judgements are ¢continually evaluated and are based on histerical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the
entity and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptlons that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities are disclosed below.

Applicahility of service concesslon arrangement accounting to toll roads concessionaire
arrangements

The Company has determined that Appendix A of Ind AS 11 ‘Service concession arrangements’ is
applicable to the Company which provides on accounting by the operators for public-to-private
service concession arrangements. The Company has entered into concession arrangement with
GSRDC as per which the Company would participate in the Design, Build, Finance, Operate and
Transfer (DBFOT} basis the toll roads infrastructure. After the end of the concession
arrangement, the Company has to transfer the infrastructure i.e. toll roads constructed to
GSRDC,

Income taxes

The Company has recognized deferred tax assets relating to carried forward tax losses to the
extent there are sufficient taxable temporary differences relating to the same taxation authority
against which the unused tax losses can be utilized. However, the utilization of tax losses also
depends on the ability of the Company to satisfy certain tests at the time the tosses are
recouped. Management has forecasted future taxable profits and has therefore recognized
deferred tax assets in relation to tax losses.

Amortization of concession intangible assets

The Intangible asset recognized are amortised over the concession period on the basis of
projected toll revenue which reflects the pattern in which the assets economic benefits are
consumed. The projected total toll revenue is hased on the independent traffic volume
projections; Amortization is revised in case of any material change in the expected pattern of
economic benefits.

Provision for resurfacing obligation {major maintenance expenditure)

The Company records the resurfacing obligation for its present obligation as per the concession
arrangement te maintain the toll roads at every five years during the concession period. The
provision is included in the Financial Statements at the present value of the expected future
payments. The calculations to discount these amounts to their present value are based on the
estimated timing of expenditure occurring on the roads.

The discount rate used to value the resurfacing provision at its present value is determined
through reference to the nature of provision and risk associated with the expenditure,

6 Recent accounting pronouncements




transactions and advance consideration which clarifies the date of the transaction for the
purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income, when an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a foreign
currency.

The Company is evaluating the requirements of the amendment and the impact on the financial
statements is being evaluated.

Ind AS 115- Revenue from Contract with Customers: On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate
Affairs ("MCA") has notified the Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contract with Customers. The core
principle of the new standard is that an enfity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an armount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to he entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Further the new
standard requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of
revenue and cash flows arising from the entity’s contracts with customers,

The Company is evaluating the requirements of the amendment and the impact on the financial
statements is being evaluated.

As per our report of even date

For Rajratan Kotharl Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
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W Anil Sakharam Korpe

(Director)
DIN 1 07543339

Rajratan M Kothari
Membership No.: 032428
Proprietor

Place : Mumbai

Date : 3rd September, 2022

Santosh Kumar Patro
{Director)
DIN : 07571177




VALECHA KACHCHH TOLL ROADS LIMITED

(CIN: U45203MH2011P1L.C219600)

Regd. Office: Valecha Chambers, 4" Floor, Plot No. B-6,
New Link Road, Andheri (W), Mumbai — 4000 053
Tel.: +91-22-26733625-29, Fax: +91-22-26733945

Date: 3% September, 2022

Rajratan Kothari Associates,
Chartered Accountants

C/2 Samadhan Bldg.

L T Road, Mulund East,
Mumbai — 400 013

Dear Sir{s),
Re: Statutory Audit as per Indian GAAP (IndAS) for the year ended March 2022

In cannection with your audit of the financial statements of Valecha Kachchh Toll Roads Limited
for the year ended March 31, 2022, we recognize that obtaining representations from us
concerning the information contained in this letter is a significant procedure in enabling you to
form an opinion whether the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the Company in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
{IndAS) specified under Section 133 of the Company's Act 2013, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. We acknowledge our responsibility for preparation of
financial statements in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 including
applicabie Indian Accounting Standards referred to in Section 133 of the Act, other relevant acts
and recognized accounting policies and practices as per Indian Generaily accepted accounting
principles (Indian GAAP).

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.
Items are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an cmission or misstatement of
accounting information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the
judgment of a reasconable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by
the omission or misstatement.

The Company has been awarded for construction, operation and maintenance of the Project
Highway Built, Operate and Transfer (BOT) basis under the Concession Agreement dated 12%
July 2011 from The Gujarat State Road Development Corporation Limited (GSRDC). The
Concession Agreement is for a period of 20 years from appointed date. The company has
awarded the contract for the aforesaid work to Valecha Engineering Limited for Rs. 400 Crore at
arm’'s length price. The Project Milestone(s) / COD as per the Concession Agreement with
GSRDC could not be achieved for reasons attributable to GSRDC. Accordingly the company
has made representation to IE / GSRDC for extension of time. The GSRDC had vide their letter
dated 22.04.2014 has extended the Schedule Construction Completion Date up to 30.06.2014
and further up to 31/12/2014. However, since the construction work could not be completed
before the extended date,

GSRDC has conveyed that the Extension of Time sought by is under consideration. In the
meantime the project has got delayed beyond 31/12/2015. In which the company has to sought
extension of time suitably as per ietter dated 25.12.2015. In view of the same the GSRDC has
to medify the Milestone / completion of work accordingly and {o arrive a realistic project

completion date. —
8 Valeak,
L
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Presently Company has applied for extension of time upto 30th April 2022 vide VKTRL letter
No . VKTRL-GSRDC/2022/47 dtd. 06-04-2022

Further, the company has received provisional certificate from Independent Engineer appointed
by GSRDC to operate up to 53.659 KM from 13.05.2015. Accordingly, the Company has started
to collect Toll Collection w.e.f 16.05.2015. On 13.05.2015 the Company has received PCQOD for

Section 1 for which revenue is being generated. PCOD for Section 2 is likely to he completed
before March, 2023.

The project was stalled during 2016-17, but the construction has been started from January'18
onward to complete the balance work and GSRDC has sanctioned Rs. 74 Crores for the same
as per sanction letter dated 24™ Oct 2017, out of which a sum of INR 73,31 crores has been
received and spent on road construction.

Further, estimated project costs of Rs. 400 crores has been increased to Rs. 523 crores as on
31st March 2022. Besides, due to the prolongation of Bhuj Bhachau road project, the Company
has approached Hon'ble secretary, Road and Building department, Government of Gujarat and
to the Managing Director, Gujarat State Road Development Corporation Ltd, Gujarat and put up
a revised claim of Rs.1862.03 Crores Il 31/03/2022 vide letter No. VKTRL-GSRDC/2022/89
dated 26/07/2022 for delay/no work/idling charges/maobilization/interest on GSRDC and
company is hopeful of getting the claim. This claim will be enforced once COD 2 is
complete.

Further, the company is currently only in initial phase of operation after achieving of Partial COD
from the client, where revenue is less due to partial tolling only at Teoll Plaza Lakhond. Upon
completion of full COD and both plazas being operational, the company believes that there will
be an improvement in tolling revenues,

Given all the above circumstances, the management believes that the above circumstances are
only temporary in nature and going forward the project will achieve its targeted project estimates
and accordingly no impairment has been considered for the intangible assets being Toll Road
Project.

Accordingly, we make the following representations, which are true to the best of our knowledge
and belief:

1. Management’s responsibilities

We recognize that, as members of management of the Company, we are responsible for the fair
presentation of its financial statements as per Indian Accounting Standard (IndAS). Ve have
fuifiled our responsibiiities for the preparation and presentation of the financial statements of
financial position, resulis of operations and cash flows, as set out in the terms of audit
engagement and, in particular, the financial statements are fairly presented in conformity with
IndAS. We also believe that we have made all the required disclosures in Notes to the Financial
Statements. We have made available fo your representatives all financial records and related
data.
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We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of
assets and liabilities.

The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. The
operations have been conducted based on the delegation of power as approved by the Board of
Directors. '

All the money received / paid has been recorded during the course of the business and no
amount is left unrecorded or is wrongly entered.

2. Unrecorded audit differences

There are no unrecorded audit differences (including the effects of ¢correcting or reversing prior
year audit differences) relating to the current year financial statements.

3 Minutes and contracts

We have shown you all minutes of the meetings of shareholders and directors for the year
ended 31 March 2022, We zalso have mads available to you all significant contracts and
agreements and have communicated to you all significant oral agreements. We have complied
with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material effect on the financial
statements in the event of noncompliance. We confirm that there are no minutes or agreements
other than as shown to you.

4, Internal controf

There are no transactions of a material nature, individually or in the aggregate, that have not
been properly recorded in the accounting records underlying the financial statements.

There have been no significant changes in internal control since March 31, 2018.

5. Risks and uncertainties

There are no risks and uncertainties related to significant estimates and current vulnerabilities
due to material concenirations that have not been disclosed.

6. Ownership and piledging of assets

The Company has satisfactory title to all assets appearing in the balance sheet. No security
agreements have been executed and there are no liens or encumbrances on assets, nor has
any asset been pledged except as disclosed in the financial statements. All assets to which the
Company has satisfactory title appear in the balance sheets.

The Cempany maintains the fixed assets register detailing all the assets as required. As per the
policy, the company has conducted the physical verification of its fixed assets and no major
deviation has been found between book record and physical record.
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7. Subordinate Debt

The company has availed a subordinate debt aggregating to Rs. 58.45 crores as on 31 March
2022, from its holding company. The repayment of the same is based on the available cash flow
after repayment of the entire secured loans to lenders and carries nil rate of interest.

8. Current Assets and Liabilities

The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheets for Cash and Bank Balances, Inventories,
Accounts receivable, Current Loans and Advances, Accounts payable and accrued liabilities,
Employee related payables and Other Short term liabilities is equivalent to their realizable value.

[ Investments

We have no investments in any of the companies including affiliates except stated in the
financial statement. The Company has clear title to all its investments. There are no charges
against the investments of the Company.

70. intangible assets

There are no intangible assets as on the date of balance sheet except which has been stated in
the financial statement.

11. intangible assets under development
There is intangible asset of Rs.258.25 crores is under development as on March 31, 2022
72. Related party transactions

Transactions and relations with related parties, as defined in AS 18, amounts receivable or
payable, including providing / receiving services, sales, purchases, loans, transfers, leasing
arrangements and guarantees, etc. have been properly recorded and disclosed in the financial
statements and are entered at arm’s length.

The disclosures made in the financial statements are adequate having regard to the framework
under which the financial statements have been drawn. We also confirm the completeness of
the information provided regarding the identification of related parties.

The list of related parties is as given below:

{(a} Parties where control exists:
(i} Holding (a) M/s Valecha Engineering Limited

(b) Enterprises having significant influence: M/s PBA Infrastructure Limited
(c) Enterprise over which holding company has significant influence:

M/s Valecha Badwani Sendhwa Toll Ways Limited

M/s Valecha Infrastructures Limited

M/s Valecha LM Toll Pvi. Ltd.
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13. Contingent liabilities

There are no unasserted claims or assessments, including those our lawyers have advised us
of, which are probable of assertion and must be disclosed cther than those disclosed in the

financial statements.

There have been no violations or possible violations of laws or regulations in any jurisdictioh
whose effects should be considered for disclosure in the financial statements or as a basis for
recording & loss contingency other than those disclosed or accrued in the financial statements.

There have been no internal investigations or communications from regulatory agencies or
government representatives concerning investigations or allegations of ncncompliance with
laws or regulations in any jurisdiction, noncompliance with or deficiencies in financial reporting
practices, or other matters that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

There are no other lizbilities or gain or loss contingencies considered material, individually or in
the aggregate, that are required to be accrued other than those accrued or disclosed in the
financial statements, nor are there any accruals for loss contingencies included in the balance
sheets.

14. Oral or written quarantees

There are no oral or written guarantees other than those reported in the financial statements,
including guarantess of the dabt of others.

15. Commitments

At March 31, 2022, the Company had no commitments, other than those reflected in financial
statements.

16. Fraud

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design and implementation of programs and controis
to prevent and detect fraud. We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud involving
management or other employees who have a significant role in the Company's internal control

over financial reporting. In addition, we have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud
invelving other employees where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial
statements. We have disclosed to you all aliegations of financial improprieties, including fraud or
suspected fraud, coming fo our attention (regardless of the source or form and including,
without limitation, allegations by “whistle-blowers”} where such aliegations could result in a
misstatement of the financial statements or otherwise affect the financial reporting of the
Company.

17. independence and conflicts of interest

Based on inquiries we have made of our officers, directors and substantial stockholders, we are
not aware of any business relationship between any such officer, director or substantial

stockholder (or any entity for or of which such an officer or director acts in a similar capacity)
and Rajratan Kothari Associates.
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We are not aware of any reason that Rajratan Kothari Associates would not be considered to be
independent for purposes of the Company’s audit.

There are no instances where any officer or employee of the Company has an interest in a
company with which the Company does business that would be considered a “conflict of
interest.” Such an interest would be contrary to Company policy.

18. Retirement benefits

As per management no liability for retirement benefit costs (Gratuity Provision) arises o the
Company, as the employees work for short term basis on payroll, therefore compliances with
the Ind AS — 19 on "Employees Benefits” is not applicable to the Company

19. Derivative Contracts

We confirm that there are no agreements that are binding in nature and resulting in identification
of embedded derivates.

20, Tax planning strategies

Ve have disclosed o you all significant tax planning strategies that were put in place during the
current year or prior years that could materially affect the current year provision for income
taxes, or the recorded amount of tax assets or liabilities.

21. Tax accounting methods

We recognize that we are responsible for the Company’s compliance with tax laws and
regulations that are applicable to it. We have identified and disclosed to your representatives all
significant methods of accounting used under the applicable jurisdictional tax laws and
regulations that materially affect the determination of financial statement amounts.

22. Subseguent events

Subsequent to March 31, 2022, no events or transactions have occurred or are pending, other
than those disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, that would have a material effect
on the financial statements at that date or for the period then ended, or that are of such
significance in relation to the Company’s affairs to require mention in a note to the financial
statements in order to make them not misieading regarding the financial position, resulis of
operations or cash flows of the Company.

During the year ended March 31, 2021, the Parent Company’s appeals against the winding up
orders dated 01.03.2018 and 26.04.2018 passed by the Hon'ble High Court were dismissed by
the Hon’ble High Court vide orders dated 05.03.2021 and 08.03.2021. Pursuant to the dismissal
of the said Appeals the Parent Company preferred a Special Leave Petition bearing No. SLP
(Civil) Diary No.71031 of 2021 before the Hon'ble Supreme Court, which eventually was also
dismissed by the Hon’ble Supreme Court vide Order dated 30.04.2021. However, the said order
dated 30.04.2021 alse granted liberty to the Company to present a formal petition/application
and present a scheme of settlernent. One of the shareholders of the Parent Company, Valecha
Investments Private Limited, holding 17.77% cof the total equity shares, propounded & scheme
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of arrangement / compromise in pursuance of the liberty granted by the Supreme Court of India.
They also filed Company Summons for Directions {L) No. 25113 of 2021 seeking appropriate
orders to call for meetings of stakeholders to vote on the scheme. The Parent Company’s Lead
Banker State Bank of India moved an application to transfer the matter to National Company
Law Tribunal (NCLT) as the Parent Company is a construction and infrastructure development
company and is a going concern, Accordingly, the Hon'ble High Court vide order dated 17,12.21
passed an order directing the transfer of the Company Petition No. 761/2015 and Company
Petition No. 173/2016 to NCLT.

Accordingly, financial statements of VKTRL has been prepared and no adjusiments, if any,
have been made.

23. Accounting policies

The accounting pelicies which are matertal or critical in determining the resuits of operations for
the year or financial position are set out in the financial statements and are consistent. The
accounting policies are drawn up in accordance with the generally accepted accounting policies
in India.

24, Liabilities & provisions

We have accounted all known liabilities in the financial statements. However, in respect of
accounts payables the company is in the process of obtaining confirmation / reconciliation from
the parties.

Provision has been made in the accounts for all known losses and claims of material amounts.

25, Cash & Bank Balances

The cash & Bank balance of the company as at 31.03.2022 was Rs. 106.36 lakhs. All the bank
accounts have been reconciled at the vear end and entries are properly recorded. All the
cheques deposited in the banks and ocutstanding as on March 31, 2022 were duly cleared
subsequently,

26. Revenue on Toll Collection

The toll collection from users of facility is accounted for as and when the amount is due and
recovery is certain. The company has proper internal control system for recognition of toll
revenue,

27, Others

¢ The company has not granted, secured or unsecured loans to companies, firms and other
companies, or other paries listed in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013. -
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During the financial year 2021-22, the company has not accepted any public deposits.

The company has defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institutions or bank and
same has been disclosed in audit Report and in financial statement, and The Company has
not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority.

The company has defaulted in payment of deposit, loan and interest thereon and
accordingly the directors of the company are restricted from being appointed as a director
in terms of sub-section (2) of section 164 of the Company's Act.

No expenses of personal nature (other than those payable under contractual obligations or
in accerdance with generally accepted business praciice) and / or not related fo the
Company's business have been charged to the Company's accounts.

There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Wealth tax, Service tax, Interest
tax, Sales tax, Customs duty, Excise duty, GST and Cess outstanding as at the year end
for a peried of more than 8 months from the date they became payabie during the year.
There are no disputed / contingent liabilities against income tax / sales tax / wealth tax /
service tax / customs duty / Excise Duty / GST/ cess other than those which are stated in
notes to accounts.

All legal reguirements regarding agreements relating to the Rent, Security, deposits, Lease
and hire purchase have been complied with.

The maintenance of cost records is not applicable as prescribed by the Central
Government under sub section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The financial statements and appended notes thereto, include all material disclosures
necessary for these accounts to show a true and fair view of the state of affairs and the
results of operations of the Company and disclosures required to be made therein under
the Companies Act, 2013 / respective accounting standards and are free of material
misstatements, including omissions.

All events subsequent to the Balance Sheet date have been fully considered in preparing
the accounis and no other matter has come to our attention up to the time of signing this
letter which would materially affect the accounts and the related disclosures for the year
ended 31.03.2022.

We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification
of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements.

There are no contracts or arrangements entered during the year which needs to be entered
in the register required to be maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

No director of the Company is holding any office or place of profit, without the consent of
the Company accorded by a special resolution. Also, no partner or relative of such directer,
no firm in which such director, or a relative of such director, is a pariner, no private
company of which such director is a director or member, and no director or manager of
such a private company, is holding any office or place of profit.

There are no Micre and Small Scale Business Enterprises, to whom the Company owes
dues, which are cutstanding for more than 45 days as at 31st March, 2022. This information
as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
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Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such paries have been identified on the basis
of information available with the Company.

The Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from bank or financial
institutions.

Loans and advances made by the Company have not been shown as deposits.

The Company is regular in depositing provident fund dues with the appropriate authorities.
The employees of the Company are not covered under Employees State Insurance
Scheme,

None of the directors is disqualified as on 31.03.2022 from being appointed as director in
terms of sub section (2) of section 164 of the companies Act, 2013.

There were no pending litigations which would impact the financial position of the company.
The Company have not entered into any long term contracts including derivative coniracts.

There wera no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

The company is not a Nidhi Company

The Company has not entered into any transaction in respect of loans, investments,
guarantee and security which attracts compliance to provisions of section 185 & 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013

There is a capital commitment of Rs. 6.57 Crores at the end of the year as disclosed in the
financial statement.

Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management in phased manner. No
material discrepancies were noted on such verification.

No Managerial remuneration has been paid to directors during the year or provided in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

The company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or persons
connected with him.

Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1834,

Further we confirm that we have complied with all relevant guidelines/notifications issued
by Reserve Bank of India from time to time in respect of holding and dealing with Specified

Bank Notes, and that the company had proper controls, system and procedures in place for
such compliances.

The company has designed, implemented and maintained the adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.
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e The company has not carried out the internal audit during the year 2021-22.

+ There were no pending litigations which would impact the financial position of the company
other than those disclosed in the financials.

+ The company has paid of Rs. 50,000 vide Ch No. 888555 Dt. 20.07.13 Fixed Deposit in
Canara Bank in Favour of Assistant Commissioner of Commercial Tax, Bhuj, Gujarat Afc
Valecha Kachchh Toll Roads Ltd for 36 Months. However, the company does not have any
supporting documents for the same.

¢ The company has not paid the interest on statutory liability related to WCT of Rs. 1.56 Lac
for more than 4 years as on 31.03.2022.

+ Amount payable to GSRDCL of Rs. 15.74 lakhs, Infinite Civil Solution of Rs. 15.41 Lakh,
Rites Limited of Rs. 30.99 Lakh, Vaan Infra of Rs. 40.61 Lakhs, Skylark Highway Solution
of Rs. 14.86 Lakhs are pending since long as on 31.03.2022,

» Independent Engineer Reimbursement payable of Rs, 57,00,000 pending since long.

The Company has given advances amounting to Rs. 42.48 Crores to VEL ({Holding
Company) as per the terms of the EPC Agreement Gf which Rs. 5.38 crores for Machinery
Advance, Rs. 24.68 crores for Material Advance and Rs. 12.39 crores for Mobilization
Advance, The company has taken lcan from Helding company of Rs. 58.45 crores.
Repayment of which shall not be made uniless the advance is adjusted and subject to terms
and condition from where company has taken bank lcans.

+« Advances given to other group company / associate amounting to Rs. 0.24 crores as on
31.03.2022. (Valecha Infrastructures Ltd Assets of Rs. 0.22 crore, and Valecha LM Toll
Private Limited of Rs. 0.02 crore)

We do hereby also cerify that all the condition of the concessionaire agreement with GSRDC is
being fulfilled by the company and there is no dispute with GSRDC which can affect the
financial position of the Company.

We understand that your audits were conducted in accordance with the Indian generaily
accepted auditing standards and were, therefore, designed primarily for the purpose of
expressing an opinicn on the financial statements of the Company taken as a whole, and that
your tests of the accounting records and other auditing procedures were limited to those that

you considered necessary for that purpose.

Very truly vours,

For, Valecha Kachchh Toll Roads Limited

W Soatdy W Cas.

Anil Sakharam Korpe Santosh Kumar Patro

(Director) : (Director)
DIN : 07543339 %N\, DIN: 07571177
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